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A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 21-03-07 of the North 
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Chairman Cook: Called the hearing to order on SB 2041. 
 
Senator Unruh: This was another bill that came out of the interim committee. This bill says 
that the governing body of any park district may issue general obligation bonds for the 
purpose of providing funds to acquire, lay out, and approve parks, park ways, boulevards, 
and pleasure drives, and to acquire land for these purposed but that may not at any time 
exceed 1% of the assessed evaluation of the taxable property in the park district. This bong 
obligation must be published in the official newspaper and protests may occur within 60 days 
after publication and those protests must be in writing. If the protests have an assessed 
evaluation equal to 5% or more of the assessed evaluation, of all taxable property in the park 
district, the projects can’t move forward. Also repeal of section in 2103-6 subsection 6 which 
is basically just language taken from one section of code and shuffled in to this new language. 
With that, I will stand for any questions.  
 
Chairman Cook: The biggest difference between the new language and the old language is 
basically the ability to protest is that true? 
 
Senator Unruh: That is correct.  
 
Chairman Cook: Further testimony is support please come forward. 
 
(2:46) Steve Vogelpohl: Testified in support of SB 2041. Read attachment #1. 
 
(17:08) Chairman Cook: Questions for Mr. Vogelpohl? 
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Senator Patten: The way I understand this is that with all the property of the park district 
being the only property in that district, they basically can’t special assess themselves. 
Therefore, it becomes a general obligation bond of the park district correct? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: They specially assess themselves. 
 
Senator Patten: But they have no revenue to pay that? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: Yes, they do. They have an obligation to levy general tax to pay the special 
assessments against their property. 
 
Senator Patten: Okay and the general tax is spread out? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: If we are talking just about the park property, it is the tax basis of the entire 
park district that pays the general tax that pays the special assessments. 
 
Senator Dotzrenrod: If you look at the language on line 18-21, it says this has to do with the 
protest that has been signed by the owners of taxable property. If that exceeds 5% of the 
evaluation of all the properties in the district, then the resolution to do the bonds is stopped. 
It seems to me that 5% is easy to get. Most protest require a 50% or more to stop a special 
assessment project. It does look like if 5% is all that is required, this bill would put an end to 
these kind of bonding projects correct? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: The 5% is 5% of assessed evaluation. You refer to 50% when thinking of 
a special improvement district when it is 50% or more that bars proceeding with the special 
assessment district. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: But, it looks like it is signed by the owners of taxable property, the 
project is stopped? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: This bonding is stopped. 
 
Senator Dtozenrod: So this bill would stop bonding projects? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: With that protest, yes. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Is the objective to stop these bonding projects? 
 
Steve Vogelpohl: No, the objective is to move away from the use of special assessments 
and to move to the repayment source as directly general taxes. What’s transpiring under that 
that I have objected to is that there is this intermediate of special assessments that in the 
end are getting paid by general tax anyway. The legality involved, is where I find objection. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: It looks to me like you have found a way to stop that and the way you 
are going to stop it is to set a 5% bar and that would be easy to obtain and that should stop 
these projects correct? 
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Steve Vogelpohl: I am not trying to bar the projects by this, I am trying to provide a means 
for them to borrow for their projects that doesn’t entail a legal controversy that can arise which 
I am the only one that is complaining so far.  
 
Chairman Cook: Further questions? Thank you, Steve. Is there are further testimony in 
support of SB 2041?  
 
Dana Schaar Jahner: Testified in support of SB 2041. Read attachment #2.  
 
Chairman Cook: How often does a park district issue a general obligation bond?  
 
Dana Schaar Jahner: Someone else in the audience may be able to answer that. 
 
Chairman Cook: Any questions for Dana? Thank you. Any further testimony in support? 
 
Randy Bina: To answer your question you asked Dana, the answer is that we don’t believe 
it’s an annual thing. There are different types of bonds that park districts sell and depending 
on the project, revenue bonds are a source we do use. I think general obligation bonds are 
ones that we don’t use that often at this time. Thank you.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any questions for Randy? Any further testimony in support? 
 
Mike Nordstrom: I am here to support SB 2041. What I would like to also do is make sure 
that this won’t impact any of the interest rates that any of the park districts are currently 
realizing from the issue. The general obligation bonds we are talking about have the same 
security as the special assessment bonds that they have been issuing in the past. From a 
marketing stand point, it won’t be hurting them financially. They will be paying high interest 
rates on this specific type of financing versus the types of special assessment they have 
been using in the past. Both issues will still allow a protest period for the park district to get 
through before they can issue bonds. Mr. Bina did say most of the larger financing which we 
have completed throughout the state. Four park districts have been using sales tax revenue 
bonds and user remedy bonds to pay for the fitness centers which have been the large ticket 
items. This bill and the refund improvement bonds they have used in the past have been 
used for part district infrastructure necessary requirements, not from big projects and as 
Randy said, general obligation bonds with the voter approved requirement would be 
necessary from a political standpoint to issue significant amounts of money using this type 
of security. This bond will clarify some of the grey areas for the park districts. At this point, 
both of these will work very well for the park districts. Interest rates would be the same and 
from a marketing stand point, general obligation bonds have the security which investors can 
look for which in turn means a lower interest rate for the park districts. I would take any 
questions at this time. 
 
Chairman Cook: Any further testimony in support of SB 2041? Any opposed? Hearing none, 
we will close the hearing on SB 2041.  
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Chairman Cook: Called for discussion on SB 2041. 
 
Senator Patten: Moved a Do Pass on SB 2041. 
 
Vice Chairman Kannianen: Seconded. 
 
Chairman Cook: Called for discussion on SB 2041. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: I remember during the hearing; I was concerned about line 19 that 5% 
there. It seemed like a small hurdle to clear if you want to stop a project. I guess the reason 
that probably should be small, is that this is a project that is done without voter approval. The 
governing board can issue these bonds. In a normal protest on a special assessment, you 
would have 50%. Five percent seems pretty low. Someone who is dedicated to stopping it, it 
seems like they would be able to get that amount of signatures. Maybe that is okay. I am just 
not sure. It just looks like if someone wants to stop it, it wouldn’t be that difficult to do.  
 
Senator Patten: If it goes to a vote of the public, that is 50% of the voters in that assessment 
district correct? In this case, it is 5% of the tax of the assessed value of the taxable property. 
There would be one case that you could have one higher value property that could be 5% 
and that would be the one that would be able to do it. Or, if they are all equal, it would take 
more. Is that correct?  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Maybe I am getting to types of elections mixed up here. I wasn’t thinking 
of this as a vote where you would go to the ballot box, I was thinking of this as property being 
protested out inside a special assessment district and maybe that is not the kind. When you 
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issue bonds, the question might not be that type of protest, it might be a ballot box question 
that would be on the ballot regarding if the project should go ahead.  
 
Chairman Cook: Do you want to pull back your Do Pass motion. I will clarify this. I had an 
entirely different idea of this 5%.  
 
Senator Patten: I will withdraw my Do Pass Motion. 
 
Senator Kannianen: I will withdraw my second.  
 
Chairman Cook: We will set this aside and get this question clarified. We will sit at ease until 
9:30.  
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Chairman Cook: Called for discussion on SB 2041. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: If they just want to do things by board action, then they are subject to 
this 5% property protest thing. Am I understanding that correct? Governing award committee 
has two choices, voter approval out or board action that could be stopped by a protest.  
 
Chairman Cook: Remember that this is repealing a section of code and replacing it. It deals 
with bonding by political subdivisions; such bonds may be issued by any park district which 
constitutes a distinct municipality to provide for, acquire, and lay out. There is no language 
in here that puts the 5% limit where you can protest out. That is all we are doing, is giving 
voters who may be subject to a park district issued bond, the option to stop it. That is what 
Mr. Vogelpahl’s testimony was.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Have we created a new option that doesn’t correctly exist? That is can 
the board, under law, go ahead but there is no protest mechanism?  
 
Chairman Cook: There is no protest mechanism. That is all we are doing. We are providing 
a protest mechanism.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: Does the 5% seem small or do you think that is significant. 
 
Chairman Cook: I think that when it is 5% of an entire city, that that is significant. 
 
Senator Patten: It would be rare one where you would have a huge value property in a very 
small city.  
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Senator Dotzenrod: I assume that when we talk park districts that most of them have 
boundaries that conform to the boundaries of the city.  
 
Chairman Cook: In North Dakota, I think that is the case, but in this section of code it makes 
it that it has to include the entire city. I don’t know of a park district that doesn’t include the 
entire city.  
 
Senator Unruh: We heard quite a bit about this in the interim. I think we had this on the 
agenda at a minimum of two times, maybe even three. Mr. Vogelpahl was the only person 
who came to speak on it every time. I do not think it is something that is being abused. I think 
the 5% threshold is reasonable, and I am not even sure if it is necessary given the very little 
public testimony we got on the topic, but I think it is a good start. All the park districts approved 
it. It must not be that lucrative of an option for them to use or I think we would’ve heard a lot 
more about it.  
 
Chairman Cook: Mr. Vogelpahl sent me so much mail over the last three years. 
 
Senator Patten: Moved a Do Pass on SB 2041. 
 
Senator Unruh: Seconded. 
 
Chairman Cook: Called for discussion on the bill. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 Yaes, 0 Nays, 0 Absent. 
 
Senator Unruh will carry the bill.  
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Chairman J. Dockter: Opens the hearing on SB 2041.  
 
Emily Thompson: Legislative Council. Introduces the bill. This bill came recommended from 
the interim taxation committee as the committee studied property tax. This bill deals in part 
with special assessments. This bill allows a park district to issue bonds with a different 
approval percentage than they currently have. The current law in a municipality may not issue 
bonds unless they are authorized to do so by 60% of the qualified voters. We have added an 
exception in Section one, this allows the governing body of a park district rather than having 
a vote by 60% of the voters. They issue a resolution and is published in the newspaper of 
the park district to protest that resolution. The bill is to give park districts a viable option by 
lowing the threshold to use bonding which gives them other options aside from using special 
assessments.  
 
Rep. Johnson: Define assessed valuation.  
 
Ms. Thompson: Assessed valuation is 50% of your true and full value.  
 
Rep. Johnson: The assessed value on residential is the true and fair value, is 50% and 9%. 
That is the assessed value you describe in this bill?  
 
Ms. Thompson: I believe the assessed value would be 50% of the true and fair value is what 
you would look at.  
 
Rep. Johnson: Is the limit of the 1% as the assessed valuation per bond issue?  
 
Ms. Thompson: The property attorney here said that is aggregate not per bond issue.  
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Rep. Johnson: This bill says the total indebtedness on general obligation bonds for a park 
district cannot be more than 1% of the assessed value described as fair market at 50%?  
 
Ms. Thompson: That is correct. Section two of the bill is repealing of 21-03-06. That section 
deals with the purposes and limitations on municipalities to issue bonds. On lines eight 
through twelve that 1% of the valuation is current law right now. We are not changing the 
amount of bonding it is being relocated. The debt limit threshold has not changed.   
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Currently if a park district issues bonds it has to be approved by the 
voters? This would require the park district to publish in the newspaper and it would take a 
certain thresholds of protests in order to stop the bond issue from going forward?  
 
Ms. Thompson: That is correct. The section being repealed 21-03-06 states that 
municipalities are empowered to borrow money and issue bonds for certain purposes and 
lists the different entities that can issue bonds. Subsection 6 deals with park districts we are 
reiterating the same language.   
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The reason the interim committee liked this idea because there is some 
perceived property tax relief? I can see it would be easier to bond and therefore it would be 
spread out overtime. Is that the rational?  
 
Ms. Thompson: This bill is not removing any powers that a park district currently has. It is 
allowing a park district instead of using special assessments to have a viable financing option 
using bonding.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: A special assessment could be assessed on properties based on 
perceived benefit, if you build a park is the perceived benefit for the whole community or for 
that neighborhood? Are bonds always general obligation bonds so they will be for all the tax 
payers?  
 
Ms. Thompson: General obligation bonds are paid by the tax revenue, that would be the 
bonding that we are looking at. Yes, the general obligation bond debt would be spread over 
all the property.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: This could have the effect of the entire community paying off the general 
obligation bond that might have previously been restricted to an area that was specifically 
benefited by a park improvement?   
 
Ms. Thompson: I will let our bonding attorney get into that with more detail.  
 
Steven Vogelpohl: (12:53-26:03) Municipal Bond Attorney. (Handout #1) Read his 
testimony.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The confusion that exists with an Attorney General’s opinion that was 
issued, however the bill seems to give park districts a different process than cities and other 
political subdivisions have to follow. I understand you want to bring clarity to the confusion 
why set park districts apart with a different standard?  
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Mr. Vogelpohl: I’m not following the question.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: My understanding is currently the norm is there having to be a vote and 
this changes it to a publication then a protest which would have to reach a certain threshold 
in order to thwart the park districts desire to issue bonds. Why are you seeking that change? 
It’s not just clarity but a change in public policy.   
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: What I’m trying to accomplish is now there is a process being used where 
the improvement is the park itself. If you make improvements in the park itself the park 
doesn’t benefit, to have benefits you have to have property owners to judge as having 
received something different. The Attorney General’s opinion is resulting in situations where 
the improvement district is consisting just of the park. The law says that when a park district 
has special assessments against its property its obligated to levy general tax to pay the 
special assessments. The process that is occurring now is that issuance of special 
assessment bonds with the improvement district consisting of the park. Then following the 
statutory obligation to levy taxes against all of the park districts to pay those bonds.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The problem now is the park itself is the improvement district. Because 
the park is public property zoned by the park district it is not paying taxes, the taxes have to 
come from the tax payers. So special assessments are issued for that park district and then 
the only way for them to be paid is by general obligation?  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: That is how it gets paid.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Is there anything in current law preventing a park district from creating 
a special assessment district for an area that is judged to be benefited uniquely by that park?  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: No, the park district can create a geographic area just like the city creates 
an improvement district. The special assessments go against the property in that district 
which includes private properties. They can do that and issue special assessment bonds.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: What is it they can’t do then? 
 
Mr.  Vogelpohl: If you do the territory around the park there is a protest opportunity. Maybe 
the improvement doesn’t occur, so if you want to do improvements to the park why take the 
risk? The Attorney General’s opinion from 1982 there is no present history as they threw the 
records away after six years.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Which is what they do now that results in a general tax to pay off the 
bond because it is a general obligation.  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: Maybe that can stop its just litigation. We have something going on that was 
induced by poorly written opinion by the Attorney General in 1982.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The main impediment to park districts using this method is they would 
have to put it on the ballot and get voter approval, is that right?  
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Mr. Vogelpohl: To do bonds under chapter 21-03, yes. I provided the interim committee with 
two options. Let’s just get rid of the election requirement. The second was let’s put a protest 
option in.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Is the election requirement that currently exists unique to park districts?  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: No. 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Then why are we setting park districts apart. Saying everyone else has 
to bring this before the voters but you do not.   
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: The general rule for bonds under chapter 21-03 is an election. There are 
exceptions and they are in 21-03-07. The common exception is school districts building fund 
or city streets that are designated as arterial streets.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: It appears if the bill passes in this form what you are doing is removing 
in all circumstances the requirement the park district to go before the voters to do this.   
Whereas the other political subdivisions you mentioned do have to take a proposed bond 
issue before the voters. The unintended consequence is that you are creating a special 
privilege for park districts that even cities, counties and school districts don’t have.  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: Maybe I’m wrong.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: You gave the interim committee two options. One of the options was 
not to repair the status quo in such a way that park districts would do what other political 
subdivisions do on a regular basis. Why not fix the statue that it is not readily used 
requirement just like for other political subdivisions rather than going these other routes?   
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: That is something you can look into. 
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Cities generally hold protest hearings for infrastructure projects, roads, 
bridges, water, sewer, the need is out there. Generally, you have the protest hearings and 
they don’t have a lot of people there. I think in this case the park districts are looking for a 
similar opportunity in improving their system to adding infrastructure to a park or walking path 
or etc. The only ones that I know of that actually have to get voter approval is when you don’t 
have building authority given to a school district that is when it goes to the 60%. So they are 
looking for an equal opportunity as a political subdivision.  
 
Mr. Vogelpohl: The special assessment financing for park districts is vulnerable to 
constitution challenge. To meet constitutional standards, you have to have specially benefit 
property, the types of improvements that parks do don’t readily lend themselves to specially 
benefitted property. The parks are generally available to everyone to use, to meet 
constitutional can be challenged you have to demonstrate special benefit to the territory. The 
types of improvements that park districts do don’t always lend themselves to that site. It can 
be challenged on a constitutional basis, much quicker than a street, or water or sewer like 
the cities do.  
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Rep K. Koppelman: When new parks are built the developers are required to donate some 
of their land back to the city for the purpose of a park. The park district looks at it and decides 
they don’t need a park in that area, so takes money from them instead and use it for a park 
in a different area. So you have people buying lots from the developer in that area essentially 
paying for a park that is not in their area. Then you have another park being built somewhere 
with the acquired funds and as a result you have improvements being made and if this bill 
would be law now there would be a general obligation throughout that political subdivision to 
pay for that park. The people that live in an area with the park is not, are paying the higher 
share of the park that is not in their area. Then the area where the park is benefitting the 
most from it are not required to pay anything additional under this. Instead the cost is spread 
across the city again. I’m struggling with the idea of not being able to assess the cost of that 
to the people who directly benefit from it to a larger degree.   
 
 Dana Schaar Jahner: North Dakota Recreation and Park Association. (Handout #2) Read 
her testimony.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: Closes the hearing.  
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Relating to issuance of bonds by governing body of a park district without voter approval; 
relating to the issuance of bonds by the governing body of a park district  
 

Minutes:                                                 1 

 
Chairman J. Dockter: Opens for committee work. 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: (Handout #1) Discussed the proposed amendment handout. Page 1 
line 21 defines maintenance for the purpose of the bill. Made a motion on the amendment. 
Section one is what is being added on the bill and Section two is removing the repealer so 
the park district would have to go to the vote of the people for the major things. We are giving 
them a new process of doing things they have been doing by going through the back door 
and this gives them the right way.   
 
Rep. Ertelt: Second the motion.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad:  Could the park district use the option that you are giving them regardless 
of the situation? Or do they have to go to the vote of the people?  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: They would have to go to the vote of the people for major new things 
but for maintenance and routine things they spend money on they would be able to use this 
process.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: So they don’t have to go through the voting process we are still 
keeping that in place. We are adding for routine maintenance and line 21 defines what routine 
maintenance is.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: As that definition goes it includes maintaining a useful life so you are 
doing restoration of the property to previous condition, incidental repairs to the property and 
that should cover the parking lot.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad:  Isn’t that what the park district levy is supposed to for? It would seem to me 
they will take advantage of the situation on a big project.  
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Rep K. Koppelman: I am not sure what kind of project you mean. Actually they could do that 
with the bill because what the bill would do without the amendment is allow them to do 
anything they do through this process and never go to the vote of the people. We are actually 
repealing the section that requires a vote of the people.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: If we give them two options and they will take the easier one which is to 
issue the bonds and if the people don’t complain, so why go back to the vote of the people?   
 
Rep K. Koppelman: If you are doing something other than routine maintenance. If you are 
doing building a new park, if are going to buy new equipment, that is not routine maintenance 
that is acquiring, laying out, and improving the property.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: Does it say just routine maintenance? I get the impression that you could 
use either one in either case.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: The original bill says acquire, layout and improve. And we are replacing 
that with “for the maintenance of”. Then we are defining what that means.  
 
Rep. Toman: This came from the interim tax committee; the problem is park districts having 
special improvement districts which are inside of political subdivision land so there is no 
protest available. What they were doing is creating this improvement district and no one could 
protest it because there are no land owners who live inside of that improvement district.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: I did visit with Mr. Vogelpohl after the meeting to make sure I was 
understanding him. If we do pass this, I would connect with him to make sure he sees the 
proposed amendment and if he sees anything that doesn’t accomplish that objective then we 
could conference it and try and fix it or we could hold it.  
 
Rep. Toman:  I think that was the purpose the repealer is to take the authority away from 
them so they can’t create a special improvement district inside of their own boundaries.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: That is one thing I discussed with him do we want to take the vote of 
the people away? Because it is not being used right now but the reason it is not being used 
is because they found this backdoor approach.  
 
Rep. Fegley: When you have a bond there are fees involved and you don’t want to have a 
bond for $50,000 maintenance deal to assume another $10,000 fee to get the bond set. If 
you are doing a sizable bond, then the people should have a vote for the indebtedness.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: That is what I am trying to get at with the amendment. If it is a major 
issue the people have to approve it, if it’s not then the park district can do it as a part of the 
routine work.  
 
Rep. Fegley: When I look at maintenance, the bond doesn’t fit the maintenance aspects. 
The cost of putting a bond in and using it for maintenance and not have a vote I’m leery of.  
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Chairman J. Dockter: What Rep. Koppelman did is make to it so the smaller projects, they 
can do. And the major projects would have voter approval and still allow the people to voice 
their concern if there is a major project.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: An option is we can just wait or if it does what I think it does we can 
move forward and you can hold it and not sign it and give me time to check with Mr. Vogelpohl 
and Emily Thompson that this accomplishes what I think it does. Then we can bring it back.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: We could bring it back to committee to next week if we need to.  
 
Rep. Toman: Before the people had no protest but now they would have a filing of protest 
on line 17. That is what this is seeking to solve. 
 
Chairman J. Dockter: Right. If we do pass it, I will hold onto it and Rep. Koppelman or Rep. 
Toman can get a hold of Mr. Vogelpohl and make sure that he can go over it and then I will 
sign off of it.  
 
Voice vote carried. 
 
Rep. Adams:  Made a do pass as amended motion.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Second the motion.  
 
Vote yes 10, no 3, absent 1.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Will carry the bill.  
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Chairman J. Dockter: Reopens committee to reconsider SB 2041. 
 
Rep. Hatlestad: Made motion to reconsider. 
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Second the motion.  
 
Voice vote carried 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: (Handout #1). Explained proposed amendment 19.0166.01003. He 
stated a portion of this amendment includes what was approved on the last amendment, 
Section 2 is a new addition. He said he spoke with Mr. Vogelpohl to see if this amendment 
would satisfy the concern. He likes the bill in its original form and doesn’t care that it takes 
away the right of the voters but likes the idea that the voters can protest, which they can’t do 
now. He stated he also think it’s important to keep that portion of the law that the original bill 
would have repealed. That allows for different types of park board actions to be approved by 
the voters. He said Emily Thompson visited with Mr. Vogelpohl as he refers to the Attorney 
General’s older opinion and thinks it vague and misinterpreted. He asked Emily if there was 
language we can add to clarify that is what is being inferred from that opinion is not the intent 
of the law. That is the purpose of Section 2 of the amendment.  
 
Emily Thompson, Legislative Council: The amendment makes a few changes to the 
amendment we had previously. It makes a change to the definition of maintenance and adds 
the section to clarify benefitted property in a park district. Mr. Vogelpohl feels there is 
ambiguity in the law, it’s not entirely clear the connection he makes between what he finds 
ambiguous and what the Attorney General decision is dealing with. The opinion is looking at 
whether or not a park district can assess 100% of the cost of the improvement versus 1/5 as 
it states in other sections of law. It doesn’t go into specially benefitted property that much in 
the Attorney General’s opinion. But that seems part of the issue Mr. Vogelpohl raised that 
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the property in that park district isn’t specially benefitted versus property in a special 
assessment improvement district. He thinks they are jumping over the step of creating a 
special improvement district right to spreading the full cost to everyone in the park district. 
He had a suggested fix for what he thought was ambiguous in the law, he said the tax payers 
have a judicial remedy so he didn’t know if the Legislative fix was needed to define specially 
benefitted properties. A tax payers have a right to take judicial action through the courts if 
they don’t believe they are being fairly assessed with a special assessment improvement 
district if they are not specially benefitted. This is the language Legislative Council came up 
with to clarify specially benefitted. It gives special assessment committees more direct 
guidance in what a specially benefitted property is. It has to have some kind of benefit that 
everyone else in the park district isn’t going to receive the same benefit.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Emily mentioned that the people have a recourse because they can go 
to court but the average folks don’t want to go to court to get something done. I think 
preserving the people’s right to vote on these issues and also the right to protest which is Mr. 
Vogelpohl’s original concern are important. I think the amendment does that.     
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Made a motion to reconsider our action by which we amended SB 2041 
for the purpose of re-amendment.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: Second the motion.  
 
Voice vote carried. 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Made a motion to adopt the amendment 01003.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad:  Second the motion.  
 
Rep. Ertelt: In the amendment, replacing “acquire, lay out and improve”, “for maintenance 
of”, “and”, “to acquire land for these purposes”, basically striking out “lay out and improve” 
and was wondering about that?  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: That goes to the original amendment which is maintained in this 
amendment but there is more added. That was to ensure the removal of the repealer at the 
bottom ensures the process by which voters vote on these assessments is retained in law 
rather than being repealed. The original bill called for essentially anything a park district would 
do to go under this new section that is being created. We had to split them so the purpose of 
this subsection which allows for protest, maintenance means improvements to property, 
which maintains the useful life of the property, the restoration of the property to its previous 
condition, or incidental repairs or improvements to property. The idea was a gravel parking 
lot they wanted to lay asphalt over it. What was taken out from the original bill was the 
language that included that it was allowed for the purpose of providing funds to acquire, lay 
out, and improve parks. The concern if the park district wanted to do a major project that 
would have to go to a vote of the people.  
 
Voice vote carried.   
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Vice Chairman Pyle: Made a do pass as amended motion.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: Second the motion.  
 
Vote yes, 10, no 4, absent 0. 
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Will carry the bill.  
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Chairman J. Dockter: Opened SB 2041 for reconsideration.  
 
Rep. Longmuir: Made a motion to reconsider SB 2041.  
 
Rep. Johnson: Second the motion.  
 
Voice vote carried.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: He asked Emily Thompson to go over the amendments and answer 
questions regarding the committee’s interpretation and what the bill does.  
 
Emily Thompson; Legislative Management: The amendments modify the previous 
amendments the committee looked at by providing a definition of maintenance. It defines 
maintenance as improvements of property which maintains the useful life of the property, 
restoration of the property to its previous condition or incidental repairs or improvements to 
property. Some language was added to park districts in regard to the levy of special 
assessments, it was language intended to be clarifying language. Section 2 of the bill, for 
purposes of this section, an especially benefited property is a property that will receive a 
benefit from the improvement that is to be paid by special assessment which is different from 
the general benefit that will be conferred on properties located outside of the special 
assessment improvement district. A reminder that last time we discussed this bill draft I had 
talked with Mr. Vogelpohl and he wasn’t of the opinion that clarifying language was needed 
as tax payers had a judicial remedy if they were unhappy with their special assessments. 
This was the method we could see in Legislative Council to somewhat clarify that.  
 
Dana Schaar Jahner; North Dakota Recreation & Park Association: (Handout #1). We 
shared information via email and handout regarding our concerns with the amendment. Scott 
Wagner a bond attorney can address this better than I can.  
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Scott Wagner: Bond Council for Bismarck Park District: Referred to handout #1.  Section 
1 would authorize the GO bonds that was found in the original bill, except it is only for 
maintenance. Political subdivisions generally do not bond for maintenance. This specifically 
refers to only incidental improvements. It’s of very limited value, because maintenance items 
are not bonded they are cash funded. Section 2 amends the section that the park district can 
use a special assessment as a financing method. The concern is the language that was 
added draws the distinction between specially benefitted property and property that 
otherwise has a general benefit. This concept is in the Century Code but it’s not specifically 
found in the Century Code. There are eight different political subdivisions that are authorized 
to use special assessments. This type of language is not found in any of those chapters. In 
the city section the statute that deals with the size and formation of the improvement districts 
specifically says that just benefitted property will be included. The concern is the distinction 
assumes that property will be left out of the district. It says if it has general benefit it will be 
outside of the boundaries. That means that less than all of the properties are in the 
improvement district, that is not the law. It’s common to have citywide assessment districts 
because the governing body determines that all properties are benefitted. This creates the 
distinction that isn’t currently in the Century Code. In the case of a park district they would 
have to determine which properties only have a general benefit and therefore have to be left 
out of an improvement district. There is no good way to determine which properties should 
not pay at all because we are excluding them as only having a general benefit. The ones to 
pay for it will have a special benefit. For all eight political subdivisions this distinction between 
general benefit outside the district and special benefit inside the district is not currently 
recognized in the Century Code.  
 
Rep. Johnson: When we limited it this for general obligation bond to maintenance we 
clouded the entire purpose of the entire bill because nobody bonds for maintenance. Who is 
going to protest if nobody bonds for maintenance? In Fargo they require developers to 
provide 5 to 10 acres within the development for park district purposes, that sets the special 
assessment district.  
 
Mr. Wagner: Yes, I agree. That is why the original bill really was a valuable tool because it 
accomplishes the same thing if the district determines that all properties are benefitted you 
accomplish the same thing with the general obligation bonds. There are very significant 
restrictions on the original bill. It is subject to protest and if the protests are sufficient the 
project is blocked and the board cannot proceed. The other one it is considered debt and the 
debt of a park district is 1% of assessed valuation and they cannot increase that. Political 
subdivisions are generally 5% and they have the ability to raise that. If this method is used, 
they would use up their debt capacity.    
 
Rep K. Koppelman: What did the repeal on the original bill accomplish? 
 
Mr. Wagner: The information that was passed out, there are three types of general obligation 
bonds listed. There is a referendum which takes 60% of the super majority. There is a type 
that is basically a reverse referendum that is subject to protest. Then there is the GO’s which 
can be issued by action of the governing body. What the repeal did in the original bill was to 
move park districts from category A, where they are now in the referendum, it put them in 
category B with the protest.  
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Rep K. Koppelman: That was where some of the concerns of the committee arose because 
removing a vote of the people was objectionable to a majority of the committee. From what 
we are hearing, A is being bypassed and B is occurring now, is that correct?  
 
Mr. Wagner: Park districts are not using GO bonds now they are using special assessments, 
which they are authorized to do. They assess park district property, which the Attorney 
General’s opinion allows them to do. In order to pay that an excess mill levy is spread across 
the entire district. Under a GO bond it’s the same method of payment, it’s an excess mill levy 
on all property in the district. The difference between park districts and other political 
subdivisions would be the debt limit. Schools can go to 10%, they have some ability under B 
to issue GO’s without an election, as do cities and counties.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: If we allow the repeal to stay in the bill and pass it, we are removing an 
opt in for the voters/taxpayers and creating an opt out. We are creating a situation where you 
bond or special assess across the entire city and only if enough people notice that and protest 
will it be stopped, is that correct.  
 
Mr. Wagner: That is correct. If GO bonds are moved to option B then the remedy for 
taxpayers would be to protest against issuance of the bonds.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: You said the new language proposed in the final portion of the current 
bill that wasn’t addressed anywhere else in the Century Code. You also referenced the 
Attorney General’s opinion so did Mr. Vogelpohl. There is this old Attorney General’s opinion 
that is being relied upon as if it were law in the Century Code, it is being relied on by park 
districts and I think it is that this committee attempted to deal with. What we tasked our council 
with was trying to discern how that opinion was being interpreted that offends some and 
correct it in law. That was the last portion of the amended bill attempts to do. But that changes 
the way you are doing things. Am I correct about that?     
 
Mr. Wagner: Yes, but the main concern is that the language says there are specially 
benefitted properties that will be subject to assessment. But then there is another class of 
property which has a general benefit and that is outside of the boundaries of this improvement 
district. If it is outside the boundaries it cannot be assessed. Currently in Bismarck the park 
board determines the entire district will be benefitted from these park facilities. With the new 
language they would be forced to decide which properties have a special benefit and will pay 
for it but then there will be another class of property that only has a general benefit and they 
will not have to pay anything because they are outside the boundaries of the district. The 
practical matter is with some of the facilities how do you decide that? That is why in the 
midsize and smaller cities it’s common to see citywide districts because the improvements 
are the type they can’t decide which properties left out from an improvement that would 
benefits the whole community. So citywide districts are common.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Do you believe the language would prohibit there being a citywide 
assessment?  
 
Mr. Wagner: That is the concern. It says there has to be specially benefitted properties.  
 



House Political Subdivisions Committee  
SB 2041 
4/4/2019 
Page 4  
   

Rep K. Koppelman: I grew up in a small town where they had only one city park. But now 
there are several parks in a development, chances are people from all over the city never 
come there. The legal reasoning is to say you look at what is being specially benefitted, the 
park district says what is being specially benefitted is the park. But you can’t assess that 
because no one lives there, then you assess the entire city, is that correct?  
 
Mr. Wagner: You start with the concept that all property is subjected to assessment which 
includes governmental property, whether anyone lives there or not. The AG’s opinion said 
that park district could decide to put all the assessment on the park itself. The legislature said 
if cities and counties and schools and park are going to be receiving assessments from other 
political subdivisions how do they pay for it? There is a statute that says if a political 
subdivision receives an assessment they can put a levy on sufficient to make that payment. 
The assessment is placed on the park in order to pay that, the park is authorized to put on a 
levy to make the payment.   
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Don’t you believe it be wiser to for the Legislature to codify the process 
rather than taking an old Attorney General’s opinion, with an interpretation that not everyone 
agrees with, and trying to connect the dots with another piece of the Century Code and trying 
to come up with another formula for how you do business?  
 
Mr. Wagner: Special assessments are difficult and that is why there is not a good way to 
determine benefit in the case of park facilities. But that is why this bill arose was to allow the 
limited option of the GO bonds. Park are unique with a low debt limit, it would allow them to 
do something with protest but on a limited basis.  
 
Rep. Fegley: 5% of the tax value changes the whole concept of one person one vote. 
Especially in my local town when Enbridge put $400million worth of infrastructure in place 
and they virtually would control this whole thing. All the citizens could say yes and Enbridge 
says no and its done. What would be better?  
 
Mr. Wagner: I’m not sure, it’s been in Code a long time. An example is school districts are 
able to issue GO bonds with the 60-day protest against their building fund levy. It’s the same 
language with 5% of assessed evaluation has to protest. With assessment it’s based on area 
of property, so a few large property owners can block an assessment district.  
 
Rep. Longmuir: Were you comfortable with the first bill before all the amendments? Did that 
seem to meet the needs of what you were trying to accomplish?  
 
Mr. Wagner: Absolutely, that would be a great tool for parks. Citizens have the right to protest 
and they can look at the whole community paying for a project but with the protest and the 
debt limit are significant limitations.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Do you think the language in that part of the amendment corrects or 
clarifies the Attorney General’s opinion?  
 
Emily Thompson: That was the best approach Legislative Council could draft in order to 
specifically address some of the concerns in Mr. Vogelpohl’s testimony. He didn’t think that 
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legislative fix would be something he was in favor of but he didn’t have any suggestions to 
address his specific concerns and how he was interpreting the opinion.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: He believed voters had a judicial remedy to hire a lawyer and go to 
court to deal with it.  
 
Emily Thompson: Right 
 
Rep. Hatlestad: The park board determines benefit area? 
 
Emily Thompson: Yes, it is the park board. 
 
Rep. Hatlestad: The small neighborhood park that is special, softball diamonds could they 
say this is district wide?   
 
Emily Thompson: Under the current system yes they can determine which properties are 
benefitted.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: With this amendment?  
 
Emily Thompson: The amendment might serve as a limitation on that. Mr. Vogelpohl’s 
concern was there was no differentiation between the specially benefitted properties and 
those with a general benefit in a larger community.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: It would be up to the board to decide and Mr. Wagner said it would be 
difficult to decide. But if it is a small town that has one major park the board could say this 
will benefit the whole community and therefore be a community wide assessment. Versus in 
a bigger city with a small park in a residential neighborhood and they can say this only 
benefits that neighborhood. Would that be possible under that language?  
 
Emily Thompson: The language does serve as a limitation on their discretion. They do have 
the discretion to decide what is benefitted but the intent of this language was to box them in 
more and to distinguish between general benefit versus the special benefit.  
 
Rep. Johnson: General benefit is difficult to determine so to hamper it further doesn’t provide 
any guidance at all.  
 
Rep. Fegley: The district has the broad power of setting the size of the district and who they 
are going to assess? Can that go outside the city limits?  
 
Emily Thompson: It would be limited to the district.  
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Even though we don’t live in the city we use the city parks. I don’t pay 
for it but I do buy my gas and groceries there. There is general good in the parks and it 
benefits everybody.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: In economics they talk about it all comes down to a public good.  
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Rep. Johnson: Made a motion that the amendment return to back to original form.  
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: That is 19.0166.01000.  
 
Rep. Longmuir: Second the motion.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: With the repeal in the original bill which takes away the voters authority 
to vote on these issues, I can’t support that.  
 
Voice vote carried.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: Made a motion to remove the repeal on the last two lines of the original 
bill. I think the result would be if the bill passes without the repealer the proponents would be 
getting much of what they desire. Most things would be done under the protest provision but 
at least we would be leaving in Century Code the provision that requires going before the 
voters.  
 
Rep. Adams: Second the motion.  
 
Rep. Johnson: Could someone come back and explain how those two sections work 
together? What the repeal does and if it conflicts with section 1?  
 
Mr. Wagner: If the repeal part of the bill is removed it means the authority for park districts 
to issue GO bonds would be in two categories, so in the handout A and B. They could proceed 
with the voter approved method or they could proceed under the protest method.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: So you don’t see that as a problem then?  
 
Mr. Wagner: No, I think it is fine.  
 
Rep K. Koppelman: If the bill is passed, with the repeal the process would be using this 
process most often, would you not?   
 
Mr. Wagner: That would be a great tool for park districts to use the protest option.  
 
Rep. Hatlestad: The park board would decide which option A or B they would use?  
 
Mr. Wagner: Yes, that would be the discretion just like they use special assessments, 
revenue bonds or A and B options with the GO bonds.  
 
Voice vote carried. 
 
Rep. Johnson: Made a motion do pass as amended.  
 
Vice Chairman Pyle: Second the motion.  
 
Vote 12, no 0, absent 2.  
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Rep. Johnson: will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman J. Dockter: Closed the hearing.  
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